
 

 
Telephone Enquiries: Rachael Liles, Democratic Services (01254) 380136 
Email:  rachael.liles@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Friday, 26 February 2021 

Page 1 of 3  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Audit Committee 
 
Monday, 8 March 2021 at 5.00 pm, 
https://eu-west-
1.protection.sophos.com/?d=youtube.com&u=aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cueW91dHV
iZS5jb20vd2F0Y2g_dj1pNXVudDFWczQyTQ==&i=NjAxN2VhZDQ0YThhOW
YyOTlmYjlkODQ4&t=RjRkclREL3hLNmJFTC90NE9RNmhYTGoxUTVzQUZT
RnZOd 
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Stephen Button 
Vice-Chair:  Tim O’Kane  
 
Councillors Chris Knight, Kate Walsh, Kath Pratt, Michael Miller and Tim O'Kane 
 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence, Declarations of Interest, Dispensations and Substitutions   
 
 

2.   Minutes of the Last Meeting  (Pages 5 - 16) 
 

To submit the minutes of the Audit Committee held on the 30th November 2020 
for approval as a correct record.  
 
Recommended – That the minutes be received and approved as a correct 
record.  
 
 
 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2020-2021 

Public Document Pack



 

Page 2 of 3 

 

3.   Audit Plan 2020/21 Progress Report  (Pages 17 - 22) 
 

The Head of Audit and Investigations submitted a report to inform members of the 
Audit Reports issued during the period December 2020 – January 2021 and bring 
to the attention of the Committee what the key issues were. 
 
Recommended – That the report be noted for informational purposes.  
 

4.   Follow-Ups Progress Report  (Pages 23 - 26) 
 

The Head of Audit and Investigations submitted a report to inform members of the 
outcome of routine follow-ups following the previously agreed action plans for 
completed Audit Reports. The follow-ups detailed within this report are those 
carried out during the period December 2020 – January 2021. 
 
Recommended - That the report be noted for informational purposes.  
 
 

5.   Audit Plan 2021/22  (Pages 27 - 44) 
 

The Head of Audit and Investigations submitted a report to inform Audit 
Committee about the Internal Audit Plan for the financial year 2021/22 and to 
request that Audit Committee approves the proposed Internal Audit Plan for 
2021/22.  
 
Recommended –  
 

(1) To approve the Internal Audit Plan for the financial year 2020/21. 
 

(2) To grant delegated authority to the Head of Audit & Investigations to 
make any minor amendments to the Audit Plan: 
 
- proposed by Corporate Management Team without the need for 

the Internal Audit Plan to be re-approved. This being due to the 
Audit Committee meeting being before the Corporate Management 
Team meeting; and 
 

- to allow audit resources to be diverted at short notice to risks and 
issues arising from the Council’s ongoing response to the 
Covid19 Pandemic without the need for the Internal Audit Plan to 
be reapproved. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 3 of 3 

 

6.   Statement of Accounts 2019/20 Update  (Pages 45 - 48) 
 

The Head of Accountancy submitted the report is to inform the Committee on the 
production of the Annual Accounts and their External Audit and deal with issues 
arising from this work. 
 
Recommended –  
 

(1) That the report be noted for informational purposes.  
 

(2) To note the progress made to have an audited Statement of Accounts 
ready for audit committee approval. 

 
(3) To delegate authority to the chair of the audit committee to approve 

the accounts on completion of the audit subject to them being 
brought to the audit committee meeting following approval. 

 
 

7.   Annual Accounts 2020/21 Arrangements  (Pages 49 - 70) 
 

The Head of Accountancy submitted a report to update the Audit Committee on 
the arrangements made to date and the implications of the changes required for 
the Council ahead of the closure of the 2020/21 accounts. 
 
Recommended -   
 

(1) To note the report and arrangements that the Council is making in advance of the 
closure of accounts for the year 2020/21. 
 

(2) To approve the proposed accounting policies to be followed in producing the 
Statement of Accounts as shown in Appendix 1. 

 
 

8.   Progress Update (Grant Thornton)   
 

To give Members a verbal progress update.  
 

9.   Time/Date of the next meeting   
 

That the next meeting of the Audit Committee is scheduled to be held on Monday 
19th July 2021 at 5.00pm.  
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
1 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

 
Monday, 30th November, 2020 

 
Present:  Councillor Stephen Button (in the Chair), Councillors Chris Knight, 

Michael Miller, Tim O'Kane (Vice Chair), Kath Pratt and Kate Walsh 
 

 
The Chair welcomed all to the meeting, including public viewers on You Tube. 

 
37 Apologies for Absence, Declarations of Interest, Dispensations and Substitutions 

 
There were no apologies for absence, substitutions, declarations of interest or 
dispensations. 
 

38 Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 
The minutes of the last meeting of the Audit Committee held on 9th March 2020 were 
submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the minutes be received and approved as a 

correct record. 
 

39 Risk Management Monitoring Report 
 
The Committee considered a report of Stuart Sambrook, Policy Manager, on the outcome 
of the review of the Strategic, Generic and Operational Risk Registers.  Mr Sambrook was 
present at the meeting and highlighted key elements of the report. 
 
At its meeting on 29th September 2003, Standards Committee had been presented with 
details of the Council’s Risk Management Policy and associated Strategic and Operational 
Risk Registers.  That report had also set out a protocol for updating the risk registers in 
addition to ensuring that the risks already identified were monitored and action plans were 
in place to mitigate against those risks wherever possible. 
 
Management Team had received a report on 15th March, 2006 regarding the transfer of 
responsibility for updating the Risk Register to the Policy Team.  The protocol for updating 
the risk tables had been followed and the information gathered formed the basis of the 
current report and its associated documents. 
 
In November 2019, Internal Audit had published a report of their review of Risk Registers / 
Management to determine if they were established and managed effectively.  The audit 
report had recommended that some refresher training for Risk Management be carried out 
for All Service Managers.  It had also been agreed that it would be beneficial to carry out a 
mapping exercise across all areas of the Council to identify new risks as part of the risk 
register review process.  To date those recommendations had only been partly worked on 
and the process would carry on in 2021.  
 
The changes to the risk registers reflected in the current report were correct as at Friday 6th 
November 2020.  A similar report had been presented to Management Team on the 11th 
November, 2020. 
 
Changes to the Strategic Risk Register 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2.



 
 
 

 

 
2 

 
There had been three major changes (new risks covering the pandemic impacts on the 
Council, local community and democracy) to the Strategic Risk Register.  These were 
summarised below and one minor change that had been made was detailed at Appendix 1 
(commencing at Page 5 of the report). 
 

Area Change Risk 
Rating 
With 
Controls 

NEW RISK 

Customers / 
Citizens 
 
(Page 5) 

Risk 
Pandemic can cause harm to the health and wellbeing of the local 
Hyndburn community.  
Risk Owner 
Chief Executive 

High 

Economic / 
Reputation  
 
(Page 6) 

Risk 
Pandemic effect on Council’s financial services, staffing 
arrangements and service delivery. 
Risk Owner 
Chief Executive 

High 

Political / 
Legal  
 
(Page 6) 

Risk 
Pandemic impact on local democracy, decision making process, 
accountable procedures, transparency and local elections. 
Risk Owner 
Chief Executive 

Medium 

 
 
Changes to the Generic Risk Register 
 
There had been no major changes to the Generic Risk Register, but a number of minor 
changes (eight) that have been made to the Generic Risk Register.  Full details of the 
amended risks were set out in Appendix 2 (commencing at Page 7 of the report). 
 
 
Changes to the Operational Risk Register 
 
There had been five major changes to the Operational Risk Register.  These were 
summarised below and a number of minor changes had been made which were detailed in 
Appendix 3 (commencing at Page 11 of the report). 
 

Area Change Risk 
Rating 
With 
Controls 

CHANGE OF RISK RATING  

Legal 
 
(Page 21) 

Risk 
Failure to produce final accounts on time to appropriate legal & 
professional standards e.g. current Accounts & Audit Regulations, 
IFRS (International Financial Reporting Standards) 
Risk Owner 
Head of Accountancy Services 

Original 
Rating 
Low 
 
Revised 
Rating 
Medium 

NEW RISK 

Page 6



 
 
 

 

 
3 

 
Councillor O’Kane enquired about Generic Risk No. 2, at Appendix 4 (Summary of Risk 
Registers) which related to Buildings Insurance.  He expressed concern about potential 
increased levels of risk in relation to the buildings vacated by Mercer 1842, due to lack of 
access to the buildings.  In addition, he referred to paper records belonging to the former 
company, which might still be on the premises.  Mr Sambrook agreed to report this matter 
to the relevant service manager. 
 
Resolved - That the Committee notes the report on the outcome 

of the review of the Strategic, Generic and 
Operational Risk Registers. 

 
40 Annual Internal Audit Report and Audit Opinion 

 
The Committee considered a report of Mark Beard, Head of Audit and Investigations, on the 
Annual Internal Audit Report and Audit Opinion for 2019/20.  The report also provided 
details on the performance of the Internal Audit Team and final outturn position for 2019/20.  
Mr Beard was present at the meeting and provided a summary of the main findings of the 
report. 
 
The production of an Annual Internal Audit Report and Audit Opinion was a requirement of 
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), which were jointly published by the 
Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors (CIIA) and the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
and Accountancy (CIPFA).  The Annual Internal Audit Report and Audit Opinion was also 
an aid to those charged with governance in their consideration of the Annual Governance 
Statement in support of the Council’s Financial Statements.  The report also enabled those 
charged with governance to gain an independent viewpoint on the Council’s Control 
Environment. 
 
The full Annual Internal Audit Report and Audit Opinion 2019/20 was provided with the 
report and identified the following key issues:- 
 

Contractual 
 
(Page 11) 

Risk 
Access and availability to HBC data stored in the Cloud, should 
contractual obligations change or not be renewed.  
Risk Owner 
Head of ICT 

Low 

Physical 
 
(Page 11) 

Risk 
Non-availability on-site of ICT Officers due to illness and/or self-
isolation during pandemic. 
Risk Owner 
Head of ICT 

Medium 

Legal 
 
(Page 12) 

Risk 
Failure to complete food programme in 2020/21 due to Covid-19 
Risk Owner 
Executive Director (Environment) / Food Safety Manager 

Medium 

Financial 
 
(Page 12) 

Risk 
Project Phoenix 1D – Site Preparation Works Grant Homes 
England default funding event resulting in grant clawback for not 
achieving completion milestones and State aid compliance 
Risk Owner 
Head of Regeneration & Housing 

Medium 

Page 7



 
 
 

 

 
4 

 The Head of Audit and Investigations was able to issue a positive opinion on the 

systems of Internal Control based on the work carried out in 2019/20.  However, the 

opinion score had noticeably dropped from 1.50 in 2018/19 to 1.85 in 2019/20. 

 

 Internal Audit had not identified any issues in 2019/20 during the course of their 

audit work that would have a material effect on the Council’s Financial Statements. 

 

 Internal Audit had achieved audit plan coverage of 93.35% in 2019/20.  This was 

4.65% below the annual target of 98%.  A contributory factor in this was time lost 

through sickness, purchase of additional leave and both special and compassionate 

leave being taken within the year.  In addition, a total of 107.22 days had also been 

spent on 12 investigations. 

 

 Production and publication of the substantive report was a requirement of the Public 

Sector Internal Audit Standards.  The report satisfied the requirements for those 

charged with governance and formed a supplementary piece of evidence to the 

Annual Governance Statement. 

 
The Audit Opinion for 2019/20 was one of substantial assurance.  The work undertaken 
showed there was a generally sound system of internal control designed to meet the 
service objectives, and controls were generally being applied consistently.  However some 
weaknesses in the design and / or inconsistent application of controls had put the 
achievement of particular objectives at risk. 
 
The statement above was intended to provide reasonable assurance.  There was an on-
going process for identifying, evaluating and managing key risks.  Those risks were 
reflected in the Internal Audit Plan and were subject to their own reporting process during 
the course of the year which sat outside the Internal Audit role. 
 
Those charged with Governance were reminded that no system of control could provide 
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss, nor could Internal Audit give that 
assurance. 
 
The main report also included detailed information on the following matters:- 
 

 Purpose and boundaries; 

 Review of internal control; 

 Significant Issues arising in 2019/20; 

 Audit Performance; and 

 Analysis of Audit activity during 2019/20. 

 
Councillor Michael Miller enquired about the additional high risk areas having been 
reviewed, but not included in the audit plan, as referred to in paragraph 4.4 of the 
substantive report, and queried the impact on those planned audits which had needed to be 
dropped as a consequence, such as debt recovery arrangements.  Mr Beard responded 
that debt collection had been the subject of numerous earlier audit work.  Table 6 of the 
report showed planned day work against actual days work undertaken.  The Committee 
would consider at its March meeting whether any of the delayed/deferred items would roll 
forward into the following year’s Audit Plan.  A number of the delayed items from 2019/20, 
were currently being worked on in 2020/21 and were identified in the report at Agenda Item 
5. 
 

Page 8



 
 
 

 

 
5 

Councillor Tim O’Kane referred to the additional work of 10.4 days regarding Christmas 
Lights (p.61 of the Agenda) and noted that Cabinet had recently requested the 
improvement of lights across the whole Borough.  Mr Beard responded that that the work 
recorded in the report was in relation to a request by Management Team and the Facilities 
Team to look into contract and budgetary processes for the purchase, erection and removal 
of any lights.  The work did not look into the details of the individual displays to be provided. 
 
Resolved - That the Committee notes the content of the Annual 

Internal Audit Report and Audit Opinion for 2019/20. 
 

41 Audit Plan Progress Report 
 
Members considered a report of Mark Beard, Head of Audit and Investigations, which 
identified the Audit Reports issued during the period March 2020 – November 2020 and 
which brought key issues to the attention of the Committee.  Mr Beard provided a summary 
of the main findings of the report. 
 
The report covered an extended period of March 2020 to November 2020 due to Audit 
Committee not taking place in July 2020.  The audit areas and any key issues were detailed 
within an Appendix to the main report and included the following areas:- 
 

 Christmas Decorations Budget (Substantial assurance); 

 Debtors Processes (Comprehensive assurance); 

 Insurance Arrangements (Substantial assurance); 

 Hub - Shopping Vouchers (Substantial assurance); 

 Council Tax (Comprehensive assurance); 

 Rhyddings Park (Comprehensive assurance). 

 
Members were reminded that the number of audit reports that were issued between each 
Committee meeting was subject to variation dependent on the size of the audit and any 
non-routine audit work, such as investigations, that the Team might be involved in.  
Therefore, for the purpose of reporting, only the audit reports fully completed, issued and 
agreed would be included. 
 
Any investigations that might be carried out would not be included as a matter of routine in 
the report, particularly if they related to a specific individual or individuals. 
 
There was a target of 98% of the audit plan to be completed by the end of 2019/20 in terms 
of audit days completed:- 
 
 Position as at end of March 2020 = 93.34 % of the plan completed 
 
The position at the end of March 2020 could be broken down as follows:- 
 

Month % of the Plan Completed that Month 

April 2019 8.24% 

May 2019 6.97% 

June 2019 6.16% 

July 2019 9.01% 

August 2019 7.80% 

September 2019 8.06% 

October 2019 9.60% 

November 2019 7.75% 

December 2019 4.91% 

Page 9



 
 
 

 

 
6 

January 2020 8.44% 

February 2020 7.69% 

March 2020 8.72% 

 
There was a target of 98% of the audit plan to be completed by the end of the current 
financial year in terms of audit days completed.  As the audit team completed timesheets 
which then fed into the audit plan, it was possible to state the progress to date and the 
projected end of year position if that date was extrapolated out.  Therefore:- 
 
 Position as at end of October 2020  =  55.55% of the plan completed 
 Projected out-turn position for 2020/21 =  95.23% of the plan completed 
 
The position at the end of October 2020 could be broken down as follows:- 
 

Month % of the Plan Completed that Month 

April 2020 6.34% 

May 2020 7.07% 

June 2020 8.73% 

July 2020 9.13% 

August 2020 7.66% 

September 2020 7.64% 

October 2020 8.98% 

 
 
The projected out-turn position for the year was based on the 7 month period April 2020 to 
October 2020 and assumed that the output would remain at a constant for the remainder of 
2020/21. 
 
Councillor Tim O’Kane enquired if the Christmas Decorations Budget recommendations 
had now been implemented or had been delayed to due to COVID-19 priorities.  He also 
enquired about the Hub - Shopping Vouchers and the public perception that recipients 
could spend the vouchers on luxury items, such as cigarettes and alcohol.  Mr Beard 
responded that the voucher scheme was tightly controlled and that any assumptions made 
about profligacy were false.  He reiterated that the work around Christmas lights had been 
around the process not the actual displays arranged.  Substantial improvements in lighting 
displays could not be achieved this year, due to timing issues, but might be possible next 
year. 
 
Councillor Michael Miller enquired about work regarding Rhyddings Park, as he believed 
that all aspects of the project had now been completed.  Mr Beard confirmed that the 
project had been completed, but that the audit work was connected to the grant funding 
which might be subject to on-going monitoring by that external funding body. 
 
Resolved - That the Committee notes the content of the report 

summarising the Audit Reports issued during the 
period March 2020 – November 2020. 

 
42 Follow Ups Progress Report 

 
The Committee considered a report of Mark Beard, Head of Audit and Investigations, which 
informed Members of the outcome of routine follow-ups, following the previously agreed 
action plans for completed Audit Reports.  Mr Beard provided a summary of the main 
findings of the report. 
 

Page 10



 
 
 

 

 
7 

This report covered the period March 2020 - November 2020.   The audit areas followed up 
and any key issues, were detailed within an Appendix to the main report and included the 
following areas:- 
 

 Cloud Storage and Server Room Security; 

 Risk Management; 

 Christmas Decoration Budget; 

 Markets; and 

 Markets (controls). 

 
Following the agreement of the recommendations between Management and Internal Audit 
upon the completion of the audit assignment, the area was revisited by Internal Audit and 
the recommendations were reviewed to ensure they had been implemented as agreed.  
The process was known as the ‘Follow-Up’. 
 
Internal Audit assessed the current position against what had been agreed at the end of the 
audit.  Where no action had been taken by the Service Area, then Internal Audit would 
question why and issue a revised Action Plan.  Part of the control within the process was 
consideration by Audit Committee of any issues that arose.  The Committee had the ability 
to ask questions of Management in the relative service areas as to why they had not acted 
upon the agreed Action Plan.  The Committee could also express what its expectations 
would be with regard to such a problem occurring. 
 
Internal Audit aimed to carry out a Follow-Up for each completed audit area within 6 months 
of completion.  However there were a number of exceptions to that aim:- 
 
i) Follow-Up in 6 months would be pointless if the recommendations were of a low 

enough priority to allow a longer timeframe. 
ii) Work of the Audit Team did not allow the Follow-Up to be carried out.  Although 

Follow-Ups were an important part of the process the Head of Audit and 
Investigations always had to weigh this against the need for achieving the Audit Plan 
and auditing the risks the Council faced. 

iii) There were no recommendations arising from the original audit. 
 
Councillor Michael Miller commented that the Markets had been struggling for a number of 
years and that audit work should perhaps have been carried out sooner.  Mr Beard 
responded that the latter group of 8 recommendations had been in response to a specific 
set of circumstances which had not previously occurred.  The total number of 
recommendations in respect of Markets (17) might appear to be excessive, but they 
covered numerous different aspects of the service.  The Markets’ Management now had a 
robust set of processes in place. 
 
Councillor Tim O’Kane suggested that the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee be 
invited to consider the decision of the Cabinet reported on 12th September 2019, to extend 
the Christmas Lighting contract to allow a new 4 years contract to be let by tender in 
January 2020.  Councillor O’Kane was concerned that the smaller townships had differing 
needs, which might not be addressed effectively under a single contract and that smaller 
contractors might offer better value for money and be more responsive to local plans.  Mr 
Beard responded that the decision by Cabinet had envisaged the delegation of the decision 
to award future lighting contracts to the Regeneration and Property Manager.  The new 
contract had been through a full tender exercise and Lancashire County Council had been 
successful. 
 

Page 11



 
 
 

 

 
8 

Councillor Kate Walsh enquired about the success of the Markets’ Management in 
monitoring opening hours of market stalls in line with the new three year leases.  Mr Beard 
responded that the issue had arisen from the fact that market stalls sometimes remained 
closed while the Market Hall was open, which detracted from the overall customer 
experience.  A more consistent pattern of opening could help to promote better footfall.  The 
Audit work had helped to ensure that the rules about opening times were clear and fully 
understood by traders. 
 
Resolved (1) That that Committee notes the content of the report 

summarising the outcome of routine follow-ups 
following the previously agreed action plans for 
completed Audit Reports. 

 
(2) To refer to the relevant Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee, the arrangements for the use of a single 
contractor for the installation, maintenance and 
dismantling of Christmas lights decorations, cribs 
and trees within the Borough. 

 
 

43 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards - Quality Assurance & Improvement 
Programme 
 
Members considered a report of Mark Beard, Head of Audit and Investigations, regarding 
the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP), which set out how the Internal 
Audit Team managed any of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) that were 
not compliant.  Mr Beard provided a summary of the main findings of the report. 
 
The PSIAs had been in place since 1st April 2013 and replaced the former Code of Practice 
for Internal Audit in Local Government 2006. 
 
The Internal Audit Team were required to work within the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS).  Where the team was either partially or not compliant with any of the 
Standards, these were detailed within the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme 
(QAIP).  
 
The Standards were subject to a self-assessment, which was carried out annually by the 
Head of Audit and Investigations and also an external assessment carried out a minimum of 
once every 5 years.  The last external assessment of Internal Audit’s conformance with the 
Standards took place in February 2018 where Internal Audit had been reported as having 
over 98% compliance with the Standards. 
 
The Standards stated that there should be a QAIP in place to demonstrate both how 
conformance with the Standards was monitored and met, together with what was in place 
for those areas that did not fully comply with the Standards.  Members considered the QAIP 
document as at 31st March 2020, which detailed ‘Partially Compliant’ or ‘Not Yet Compliant’ 
Standards and showed their status as either ‘Open’ or ‘Closed’. 
 
The QAIP also included the five recommendations arising from the External Assessment of 
Internal Audit against the Standards. 
 
Resolved - That the Committee notes the content of the report 

on the Quality Assurance and Improvement 
Programme (QAIP) in connection with the Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). 

Page 12



 
 
 

 

 
9 

 
44 Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20 (subject to audit) 

 
Members considered a report of David Donlan, Head of Accountancy, on the Draft 
Statement of Accounts 2019/20, which were subject to external audit.  Mr Donlan was 
present at the meeting and highlighted key information within the report. 
 
The Committee was invited to approve the submission of the un-audited accounts for 
2019/20.  A copy had been placed on the Council’s website with effect from 19th November 
2020. 
 
The substantive report included details on the following:- 
 

 Narrative Report; 

 Annual Governance Statement; 

 Independent Auditor’s report (see below); 

 Statement of Responsibilities; 

 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement; 

 Movement in Reserves Statement; 

 Balance Sheet; 

 Cash Flow Statement; 

 Notes; and 

 Collection Fund and Notes. 

 
Grant Thornton, the Council’s external auditors, were yet to undertake their audit of the 
accounts, as at the time of writing the report. 
 
The initial deadline for production of the draft accounts had been 31st May 2020, but it had 
subsequently been moved back to 31st August 2020, as a result of pressures on Local 
Government in producing the accounts due to the potential impact of Covid-19.  The 
deadline for the audit of those accounts had also been moved back, to the 30th November 
2020. 
 
The report asked the Committee to note the late completion of the draft accounts, beyond 
the deadline, and the Council’s failure to comply with its statutory duty to submit the un-
audited accounts for 2019/20 by the date above.  There were a number of reasons for this 
including the unforeseen impact of Covid-19 on the Council’s working arrangements, the 
initial teething problems encountered with remote working, and issues relating to staff 
resources such as difficulties in filling crucial vacant posts. 
 
The formal audit findings would be reported at a future Audit Committee meeting. 
 
The period for the public inspection of the accounts began on the 23rd November 2020 and 
was due to end prior to the completion of the audit. 
 
Once confirmation had been received from Grant Thornton that the audit was complete, a 
‘Notice of Conclusion of Audit’ would be published.  It would explain that the audit of the 
Council’s accounts had finished and state where the accounts and auditor’s report could be 
inspected. 
 
The Audit Committee had responsibility under the Council’s management arrangements for 
approving the roll forward of Slippage on the Capital Programme from one year to the next.  
Cabinet had previously received the report included as Appendix B on the Capital 

Page 13



 
 
 

 

 
10 

Programme for 2019/20 and had asked Audit Committee to consider approving the list as 
shown. 
 
Councillor Michael Miller enquired about any developments in relation to the temporary re-
designation of a post as Executive Director Environment, which had taken place around 
one year ago.  Mr Donlan advised that the Statement of Accounts for 2019/20 would record 
the financial implications of that change of role.  Julian Joinson, Member Services Manager 
reported that it was understood that the staffing arrangements had been made permanent 
at a recent meeting of the Council’s Management Review Committee.  Further details would 
be provided to Members in writing outside of the meeting. 
 
The Chair enquired about the amount of Unusable Reserves (£6.6M) identified on page 165 
of the Agenda.  Mr Donlan commented that the largest single item was the Pensions 
Reserve.  None of the unusable reserves would impact on the level of Council Tax required 
because they were accounting entries that did not affect taxation. 
 
Councillor Tim O’Kane noted that the cost for Accumulated Absences Account in Unusable 
Reserves (£129k) had increased from the previous year’s figure of (£99k).  Mr Donlan 
reported that the figures had to take account of unused leave at year end, when staff 
carried forward leave.  The amount carried forward in 2019/20 might have increased due to 
staff being unable to take leave at the height of the pandemic.  However, staff had been 
encouraged to take leave in so far as this was possible.  The Chair noted that a similar 
situation might arise at the end of March 2021. 
 
Councillor Chris Knight acknowledged the hard work of the Council’s Deputy Chief 
Executive and the wider Finance Team for their work during the pandemic, particularly to 
support residents and businesses through the financial effects of Covid-19. 
 
Resolved (1) That the Committee notes the Council’s Draft 

Statement of Accounts for 2019/20 in Appendix A. 
 

(2) That the Committee notes the failure to submit the 
draft Statement of Accounts by the statutory 
deadline of 31st August 2020 and the reasons why. 

 
(3) That the Committee approves the Slippage on the 

Capital Programme as shown at Appendix B. 
 

45 Audit Update (Grant Thornton) 
 
Andrew J Smith was in attendance on behalf of external auditors, Grant Thornton, to 
provide a verbal update. 
 
The auditors had now received the Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20 and were starting 
to review them.  The audit work should commence before Christmas, although it was 
acknowledged that it was taking 30%-40% longer to carry out this work in the virtual 
environment.  The auditors’ staff also had a number of other priorities. 
 
It was anticipated that the audit would be concluded by 8th March 2021 in time to report to 
the next scheduled meeting of the Committee.  The audit team would work closely with Mr 
Donlan throughout this process. 
 
The auditors were also carrying out other work, including Housing Benefits certification.  As 
part of the Council’s return to the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP), Grant 
Thornton had to certify its own claim.  The return was normally required by the end of 

Page 14



 
 
 

 

 
11 

November, but the deadline for this year had been extended to the end of January 2021, 
due to the pandemic. 
 
Resolved - That the Committee notes the report of the external 

auditors, Grant Thornton. 
 

46 Time/Date of the next meeting 
 
The next meeting of the Committee was due to be held on Monday 8th March 2021 at 
5.00pm. 
 

 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO: Audit Committee 

DATE: 08 March 2021 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Joyce Plummer - Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: Mark Beard – Head of Audit & Investigations 

TITLE OF REPORT: AUDIT REPORTS & KEY ISSUES – PROGRESS 
REPORT FOR THE PERIOD DECEMBER 2020 – 
JANUARY 2021 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

Options Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: Options If yes, date of publication: n/a 

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To inform members of the Audit Reports issued during the period December 2020 – 

January 2021and bring to the attention of the Committee what the key issues were. 
 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 I recommend that Audit Committee: 

 note the content of this report for informational purposes. 
 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 This report covers an extended period of December 2020 to January 2021. The audit 

areas and any key issues detailed at Appendix 1. 
 
3.2 Members should be aware that the number of audit reports that are issued between 

each Committee meeting is subject to variation dependent on the size of the audit and 
any non-routine audit work, such as investigations, that the Team may be involved in. 
Therefore, for the purpose of reporting, only the audit reports fully completed, issued 
and agreed will be included. 

 
3.3 Any investigations that may be carried out will not be included as a matter of routine in 

this report, particularly if they relate to a specific individual or individuals. 
 
3.4 There was a target of 98% of the audit plan to be completed by the end of 2020/21 in 

terms of audit days completed.  

Page 17

Agenda Item 3.



3.5 There is a target of 98% of the audit plan to be completed by the end of the current 
financial year in terms of audit days completed. As the audit team complete timesheets 
which then feed into the audit plan, it is possible to state the progress to date and the 
projected end of year position if that date is extrapolated out. Therefore:- 

  Position as at end of January 2021 =  80.57% of the plan completed 
  Projected out-turn position for 2020/21 =  96.68% of the plan completed 
 
3.7 The position at the end of October 2020 can be broken down as follows:- 
 

Month % of the Plan Completed that Month 

April 2020 6.34% 

May 2020 7.07% 

June 2020 8.73% 

July 2020 9.13% 

August 2020 7.66% 

September 2020 7.64% 

October 2020 8.98% 

November 2020 7.25% 

December 2020 5.57% 

January 2021 12.20% 

 
 
3.8 The projected out-turn position for the year is based on the 10 month period April 2020 

to January 2021 and assumes that the output remains at a constant for the remainder 
of 2020/21. 

 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable as the report is for informational purposes only 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 No consultations required as this report is based on data and information held by the 

audit team based on the work completed 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

There are no financial implications arising 
from this report 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

There are legal or human rights implications 
arising from this report. 

Assessment of risk 
 

Risks are taken into consideration during the 
audit process itself, there is no direct risk 

Page 18



implication from this report. 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

This report is produced for information 
awareness of the progress of the Audit Team 
against the annual Internal Audit Plan. The 
Audit Planning process has had an equality 
impact assessment which remains valid and it 
is not necessary to update this with a 
Customer First Analysis at this time. The 
individual audit assignments may, in some 
cases, feed into the needs of equality and 
diversity issues within individual service areas 
of the Council 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 No background papers were necessary for the preparation of this report.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
APPENDIX 1 
 

Page 19

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


AUDIT COMMITTEE – 8th March 2021 
 
Summary of the main issues arising from audits carried out 
December 2020 – January 2021 
 
 
National Non-Domestic Rates:- 
 
Audit Assurance Opinion Issued:- Comprehensive assurance 
The work undertaken showed a sound system of internal control which is designed to meet 
the service objectives, in addition the work carried out showed controls are consistently being 
applied. 
 
 No issues arising. 

 
  
Contract Standing Orders:- 
 
Audit Assurance Opinion Issued:- Comprehensive assurance 
The work undertaken showed a sound system of internal control which is designed to meet 
the service objectives, in addition the work carried out showed controls are consistently being 
applied. 
 
 No issues arising. 

 
 
Emails / Leaving Processes:- 
 
Audit Assurance Opinion Issued:- Substantial assurance 
The work undertaken showed there is generally a sound system of internal control designed 
to meet service objectives, and controls are generally being applied consistently. However, 
some weaknesses in the design and / or inconsistent application of controls put the 
achievement of particular objectives at risk. 
 
 Whilst the audit did find that there was a checklist in place to be followed when an 

employee leaves the Council. It was found that it was not part of the checklist that 
Heads of Service / Managers should notify Human Resources. It was agreed that the 
checklist would be amended to reflect this as one of the steps to be followed.  
 

 
Assets of Community Value:- 
 
Audit Assurance Opinion Issued:- Substantial assurance 
The work undertaken showed there is generally a sound system of internal control designed 
to meet service objectives, and controls are generally being applied consistently. However, 
some weaknesses in the design and / or inconsistent application of controls put the 
achievement of particular objectives at risk. 
 

Page 20



 An issue was raised with Internal Audit by the Regeneration & Property Manager 
during the course of the Audit relating to refused or disputed compensation claims 
following Council decisions regarding Assets of Community Value. 
 

 Specific regulations are in place and defined processes that should be followed. This 
sets out the process and procedures which must be followed and how compensation 
should be dealt with. 
 

 Whilst the audit did not find that there had been any compensation claims it was 
accepted that this a potential risk to the Council and will remain so, therefore it was 
agreed that the risk would be added to the Council’s risk registers to ensure that it is 
managed and any potential future financial risk to the Council is minimised. 
 

 
Payroll:- 
 
Audit Assurance Opinion Issued:- Comprehensive assurance 
The work undertaken showed a sound system of internal control which is designed to meet 
the service objectives, in addition the work carried out showed controls are consistently being 
applied. 
 
 No issues arising. 

 
 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO: Audit Committee 

DATE: 08 March 2021 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Joyce Plummer - Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: Mark Beard – Head of Audit & Investigations 

TITLE OF REPORT: AUDIT FOLLOW-UPS REPORT FOR THE PERIOD 
December 2020 – January 2021 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

Options Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: Options If yes, date of publication: n/a 

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To inform members of the outcome of routine follow-ups following the previously 

agreed action plans for completed Audit Reports. The follow-ups detailed within this 
report are those carried out during the period December 2020 – January 2021. 

 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 I recommend that Audit Committee: 

 notes the content of this report for informational purposes. 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 This report covers the period December 2020 – January 2021 details of the follow-ups 

carried out shown at Appendix 1. 
 
3.2 Following the agreement of the recommendations between Management and Internal 

Audit following the completion of the audit assignment, the area is revisited by Internal 
Audit and the recommendations are reviewed to ensure they have been implemented 
as agreed. This process is known as the ‘Follow-Up’. 

 
3.3 Internal Audit assesses the current position to what was agreed at the end of the audit. 

Where no action has been taken by the Service Area, then Internal Audit will question 
why and issue a revised Action Plan. Part of the control within this process is 
consideration by Audit Committee of any issues that arise. The Committee has the 
ability to ask questions of Management in the relative service areas why they have not 
acted upon the agreed Action Plan. The Committee can also express what its 
expectations would be with regard to such a problem occurring. 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 4.



3.4 Internal Audit aim to carry out a Follow Up for each completed audit area within 6 
months of completion. However there are a number of exceptions to that aim:- 

i.) Follow-Up in 6 months would be pointless if the recommendations are 
low enough priority to allow a longer time frame. 

ii.) Work of the Audit Team does not allow the Follow-Up to be carried out. 
Although Follow Ups are an important part of the process the Head of 
Audit & Investigations must always weigh this against the need for 
achieving the Audit Plan and auditing the risks the Council faces. 

iii.) There were no recommendations arising from the original audit. 
 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable as the report is for informational purposes only 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 No consultations required as this report is based on data and information held by the 

audit team based on the work completed 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

There are no financial implications arising 
from this report 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

There are legal or human rights implications 
arising from this report. 

Assessment of risk 
 

Risks are taken into consideration during the 
audit process itself, there is no direct risk 
implication from this report. 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

 
This report is produced for information 
awareness of the progress of the Audit Team 
in terms of following up on actions previously 
agreed for implementation at the end of an 
audit assignment. Whilst individual actions 
may occasionally have equality or diversity 
requirements, this report does not as it is 
presenting facts from other sources. 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 No background papers were necessary for the preparation of this report. 

Page 24

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


APPENDIX 1 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE – 8 March 2021 
 
Follow-Ups     December 2020 – January 2021 
 
Follow-Ups Carried Out 
 
 
Issues arising from follow-up 
 

 The table below shows an analysis of the results of the above Follow-Up work having 
taken place:- 

 

Audit Area No. of Actions 
Agreed as 
Reported 

No. of Actions 
Agreed 

Implemented 

Comments 

Corporate 
Strategy 

2 2 Implemented - Senior management 
are reviewing their approach to 
communications with staff – the 
pandemic became the key focus and 
delayed progress in this area, 
however new ways of working are 
being developed to include 
messaging to staff from senior 
management. 

   Implemented – It was agreed to 
refresh the presentation of 
Performance Management 
Information to staff and posters were 
displayed at the end of 2019. Again, 
due to the pandemic these are not 
currently being produced. 

Hyndburn Hub 
Shopping 
Vouchers 

3 3 Implemented – the requirement to 
retain evidence of expenditure by the 
volunteers has been reinforced. 
Quarterly checks are being 
undertaken to ensure this evidence is 
retained (or until all the vouchers 
have been sold). 

   Implemented – the receipt numbers 
produced from the Cash Receipting 
System upon voucher payment are 
recorded on the unique shopping list 
area of the ticket created per 
customer. 

    

   Implemented – should the voucher 

Page 25



scheme continue, a regular 
reconciliation would take place 
between the master spreadsheet and 
e-Financials.  

   Note – the 3 recommendations had 
been implemented with immediate 
effect at the time of the review, which 
was July 2020. 

Cash 
Receipting 

2 2 Implemented – Upon migration to 
CivicaPay in November 2020, a 
review of users was carried out to 
ensure current staff had been 
provided with the relevant system 
access and old users had been 
removed. 

   Implemented – customer debit/credit 
card details are not stored on the 
Council network as Civica PLC host 
the service offsite. The system meets 
the current PCI DSS standards. 
Enhancements to the system are 
under consideration – customers will 
not be required to verbally provide 
card details if these enhancements 
are introduced.  

 
 

Page 26



REPORT TO: Audit Committee 

DATE: 08 March 2021 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Joyce Plummer - Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: Mark Beard – Head of Audit & Investigations 

TITLE OF REPORT: INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2021-22 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

Options Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: Options If yes, date of publication: n/a 

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To inform Audit Committee about the Internal Audit Plan for the financial year 2021/22 

and to request that Audit Committee approves the proposed Internal Audit Plan for 
2021/22 and grants delegate authority to the Head of Audit & Investigations to make 
any minor amendments to the Audit Plan proposed by Corporate Management Team 
without the need for the Internal Audit Plan to be re-approved. 

 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 I recommend that Audit Committee: 

 approve the Internal Audit Plan for the financial year 2020/21; and 
 grant delegated authority to the Head of Audit & Investigations to make any 

minor amendments to the Audit Plan: 
1.) proposed by Corporate Management Team without the need for the Internal 

Audit Plan to be re-approved. This being due to the Audit Committee 
meeting being before the Corporate Management Team meeting; and 

2.) to allow audit resources to be diverted at short notice to risks and issues 
arising from the Council’s ongoing response to the Covid19 Pandemic 
without the need for the Internal Audit Plan to be reapproved. 

 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 The Internal Audit Plan is set annually and monitored monthly. This practice is in line 

with guidance issued by both the Chartered Institute of Auditors and the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy. This also links into the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards. An annual Audit Plan with monthly monitoring allows the 

Page 27

Agenda Item 5.



Head of Audit & Investigations to react to changes and, if necessary, to revise the 
Audit Plan to incorporate these changes. 

 
3.2 The Internal Audit Plan forms the work plan of the Internal Audit Team for the financial 

year. It is risk based and is set annually and is cross referenced to the Council’s risk 
registers. Any risks within the risk register that are not already reflected within the Audit 
Plan are added to it. 

 
3.3 The 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan has made some alterations which reflect changes 

occurring within the Council as well as changes designed to streamline the Audit Plan. 
The tables below detail these changes:- 

 
Amendments to the Audit Plan 

 

Audit Area Comments 

Assets of Community Value Deleted from Ad-Hoc Work & 
Investigations and absorbed into Asset 
Management Core System. 

Christmas Lights Moved from Ad-Hoc Work & 
Investigations to Non-Core Systems. 

Debtors Processes Deleted from Ad-Hoc Work & 
Investigations and absorbed back into 
Debtors Core System. 

Emails / Staff Leaving Processes Deleted from Ad-Hoc Work & 
Investigations and absorbed into Payroll 
Core System. 

Enforcement Agencies / Bailiffs Deleted from Ad-Hoc Work & 
Investigations and absorbed into 
Benefits, Council Tax and NNDR 
(National Non-Domestic Rates) Core 
Systems. 

Facilities Team Moved from Ad-Hoc Work & 
Investigations to Establishments. 

HB Overpayment Recovery  Deleted from Ad-Hoc Work & 
Investigations and absorbed into Benefits 
Core System. 

Hub & Supermarket Vouchers This area has been absorbed into a new 
area currently within the Ad-Hoc Work & 
Investigations section of the plan named 
Pandemic Procurement. 

 
 
 Audit Areas Added to the Audit Plan 
 

Audit Area Comments 

Other Pandemic Grant Funding This was a management request and 
was added to the Audit Plan. Following 
risk assessment & scoring it has been 

Page 28



included in the 2021/22 Audit Plan. 

Pandemic Procurement This was a management request and 
was added to the Audit Plan. Following 
risk assessment & scoring it has been 
included in the 2021/22 Audit Plan. 

Remote Working Arrangements This was a management request and 
was added to the Audit Plan. Following 
risk assessment & scoring it has been 
included in the 2021/22 Audit Plan. 

Transferred Assets This was a management request and 
was added to the Audit Plan. Following 
risk assessment & scoring it has been 
included in the 2021/22 Audit Plan. 

Watchguard This was a management request and 
was added to the Audit Plan. Following 
risk assessment & scoring it did not 
score enough to be included in the 
2021/22 Audit Plan. 

 
3.4 There were also 2 areas within the Ad Hoc & Investigations section of the 2020/21 

Audit Plan that have been rolled forwards into the 2021/22 audit plan. These have 
been rolled forward because planned work by Management which would then have 
become part of the audit review has not been completed or due to issues resulting 
from the Pandemic it was not possible to carry out the audit review. These 2 areas 
have remained within the Ad-Hoc section of the Audit Plan for 2021/22 and have still 
been subject to risk assessment and scoring. The 2 areas are:- 

 Financial Controls 
 Write Off Processes 

A further 4 areas remain within the Ad Hoc & Investigations section of the 2021/22 
Audit Plan that were in the previous 2020/21 Audit Plan. All 4 areas relate to ongoing 
work surrounding the Pandemic which will continue in 2021/22. 

 
3.5 The Audit Plan has been cross referenced to the latest version of the risk registers 

(January 2021 version). This contributes to the risk analysis of audit areas and is a key 
part of the scoring matrix that is part of the overall risk assessment. Where an audit 
area is reflected in more than one of the risk registers then the score for the highest 
level of risk is applied. For example, Strategic High risks score greater than 
Operational High Risk or Generic High Risk. This weighted scoring reflects the levels 
of risk and their impacts on achievement of the Council’s aims and objectives. 

 
3.6 The risk assessment for the Audit Plan considered 9 risk factors. Each of these factors 

has a score, some of which are weighted according to risk. The audit areas scoring the 
highest pose a higher level of risk to the Council, in theory. The 9 risk factors used 
were:-  

  1.) Audit Area covered by a risk in the Risk Registers 
  2.) Have system changes taken place? 
  3.) Has the service or area been subject to cuts / job losses / restructure? 
  4.) Does External Audit require coverage? 

Page 29



  5.) Is the audit ongoing, b/fwd or deleted from the 2020/21 Audit Plan? 
  6.) Does the audit area directly affect the Council’s financial position? 
  7.) Is it a Council, Management Team or Manager priority? 
  8.) When was the last audit carried out? 
  9.) What is the monetary value / income of the area? 
 
3.7 None of the above areas has the ability to affect the assessment process in their own 

right which is why the Head of Audit & Investigations believes that the risk process 
accurately indicates which audit areas could pose a greater risk if left unaudited. 

 
3.8 An allocation of 10% of the available audit days has been classified as contingency 

days. These days are set aside to absorb time spent on ad-hoc pieces of unplanned 
work such as investigations which arise during the financial year. The 10% allocation is 
in line with previous years and previous External Audit recommendations. In addition, 
contingency set at this level has also proved to be effective in previous years. 

 
3.9 In the event there are unused contingency days, the Head of Audit & Investigations will 

allocate time to auditing some of the 64 medium risk areas that have not been in 
included in the 2021/22 Audit Plan due to the level of staffing resources available to 
deliver the Audit Plan. 

 
3.10 An allocation of 6 days has been made for audit follow-ups. This is the same as 

2020/21. 
 
3.11 An allocation of 42 days has been made for audit advice. This is the same as 2020/21. 
 
3.12 The Audit Plan risk assessment highlighted 29 audit areas as high risk, an increase of 

10 on 2020/21. All have been included in the 2021/22 Audit Plan. 
 
3.13 There are 65 medium risk areas, a decrease of 11 on 2020/21 and 1 is included in the 

Audit Plan. The remaining 64 medium risk areas will remain on a reserve list and will 
be included if other time allocations such as contingency days are not utilised. 

 
3.14 There are 37 low risk areas, an increase of 4 on 2020/21. None of the low risk areas 

are likely to be covered in 2021/22 Audit Plan unless the level of risk significantly 
increases or a specific issue is identified during the financial year. 

 
3.15 As in previous years, the Head of Audit & Investigations has been quite stringent with 

the allocation of audit days to maximise coverage and believes that the 2021/22 Audit 
Plan is challenging, but if achieved will give a good overview of the Council’s key risk 
areas as reflected in the risk registers. It will also assist Management and those 
charged with Governance in gaining additional assurance on the Council’s risk 
environment and the various activities audited. 

 
3.16 The 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan summary is attached as Appendix 1. 
 
3.17 The Head of Audit & Investigations must produce an annual Internal Audit Plan as this 

forms the basis of the annual work plan for the Audit Team.  
 

Page 30



 
 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 There is no alternative option as it is essential that an annual Audit plan is produced 

and approved by Audit Committee. Failure to do so would make it very difficult to prove 
that the work carried out is risk based and could leave the Council exposed to 
unforeseen risk which an audit could identify. Internal Audit would also be failing to 
comply with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards by not having a clear defined 
work plan. In addition the Council and the Internal Audit Team would risk criticism from 
External Audit for failing to comply with best practice. 

 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 Prior to risk assessing and formulation of the Internal Audit Plan 2021/22, consultation 

took place with Management Team, all Chief Officers, all Heads of Service and the 
Internal Audit Team. In total, 16 people representing all departments and senior 
management of the Council were consulted. The responses were fed into the risk 
scoring matrix which the Audit Plan 2021/22 reflects. 

 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

There are no financial implications arising 
from this report 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

There are no legal or human rights 
implications arising from this report. 

Assessment of risk 
 

Risks are taken into consideration during the 
audit process itself, there is no direct risk 
implication from this report. 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

 
A Customer First Analysis has not been 
completed because the report does not 
change current Council policy. An Equality 
Impact Assessment has previously been 
carried out for the Audit Planning Process 
which remains valid. The audit of individual 
areas may, in some cases, feed into the 
Customer First Analysis needs of the 
respective service area of the Council. 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

Page 31

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 No background papers were necessary for the preparation of this report. 

Page 32



 
 
 
 
 

Internal Audit Plan 

 
 

2021/22 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 1 

Page 33



INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2021/22 
 
 
Changes & Improvements 
 
There have been no major structural changes to the Audit Plan as it rolls forwards into 
2021/22. However, there have been changes to audit areas contained within the Audit 
Plan, some of which have been made to reflect changes in service provision in some 
areas or ongoing issues resulting from the Council’s response to the Covid19 
Pandemic. 
 
Following consultation with Heads of Service, Chief Officers, Management Team and 
the review of the Risk Registers, there are 5 new areas added to the audit plan. These 
are listed under Ad-hoc Work & Investigations. All 5 of the new areas are potentially 
audit areas within their own right. The Head of Audit & Investigations will determine 
whether the new areas listed under Ad-hoc Work & Investigations are absorbed into the 
larger audits they relate to or whether they remain as separate areas and are 
transferred to the relevant section of the Audit Plan as permanent additions to the audit 
universe at the end of 2021/22. In addition there are also 6 other audit areas within the 
Ad-hoc Work & Investigations section of the Audit Plan. These were rolled forward from 
2020/21 due to a combination of Management request, time restrictions preventing 
completion of the work or due to Management either not completing the work expected 
in these areas. These 6 areas have been subject to being risk assessed and scored 
again. One of the new areas whilst added into the audit universe did not score 
sufficiently high enough in the risk assessment to be included in the 2021/22 Audit Plan. 
This area remains on the reserve list of work. 
 
As part of the changes made to the Audit Plan for 2021/22, 4 of the audit areas within 
the Ad Hoc Work & Investigations section of the 2020/21 Audit Plan have been deleted 
and are absorbed into other Audit Engagements, all within Core Systems. One audit 
area within Ad Hoc Work & Investigations in the 2020/21 Audit Plan has now been 
moved to Non-Core Systems. One audit area within Ad Hoc Work & Investigations in 
the 2020/21 Audit Plan has now been moved to Establishments. 
 
Within the audit plan 10% of the total days available are set aside as contingency days. 
These are used in the case of unplanned ad-hoc work being required or it being 
necessary to carry out investigations. 
 
The risk assessment process for each audit area is based upon 9 risk criteria. All 3 risk 
registers have been cross-referenced to the audit plan. The scoring mechanism in the 
Audit Plan risk assessment for the risks gives greater weight not only Strategic Risks 
but also the level of risk such as High, Medium or Low. Areas with multiple risks have 
their score based on the highest level of risk. As an example Operational High risk 
scores more highly than a Strategic Low Risk and therefore the score for Operational 
High risks would be applied. 
 

Page 34



The risk assessment process also recognises that some areas may be of importance to 
the control environment but might not pose a significant enough risk to be listed in the 
registers. Such areas may still be audited if they score highly in other criteria. 
 
The allocation of days has been quite stringent in order to allow the maximum coverage 
possible with the resources available. Where audit areas have been reviewed 
previously the allocation of days has taken into consideration what is realistically 
achievable based on previous knowledge. 
 
 
Areas that are Priority 
 

 Core Systems – These are the Council’s core financial systems and remain a 
priority. External Audit place reliance on core systems for gaining assurance in their 
audit of the Council’s Financial Statements. Not all core systems will be examined, 
only those with the highest risk scores, 4 of the systems will be reviewed in 2021/22. 

 Grant Funding Initiatives – Relied on by External Audit and other Partners. 

 High scoring areas, 29 in total and all are included within the 2021/22 Audit Plan. 

 64 of the medium scoring areas have not been included in the 2021/22 Audit Plan. 
The other medium risk area, 1 in total, is included. Additional audit areas from the 64 
excluded will be added into the audit plan in the event that there are unused 
contingency days available or other days allocated within the plan are unused e.g. 
planned audit work uses less days than allocated. 

 
 
Monitoring 
 

 Plan progress monitored monthly by Head of Audit & Investigations 

 Performance reported to the Deputy Chief Executive, Resources monthly 

 Performance reported to Audit Committee three times a year 

 Progress discussed with External Audit at scheduled meetings 

 Annual performance of the plan reported to the Deputy Chief Executive, Corporate 
Management Team, Audit Committee and External Audit 

 Performance of the Audit Plan reviewed periodically by the Resources Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee as part of their review of Service Business Plans 

 Audit Plan reviewed annually in consultation with Strategic Directors/Managers and 
Service Heads in conjunction with External Audit. Approved by Audit Committee. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Mark Beard 
Head of Audit & Investigations 
12th February 2021 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT PLAN 2021/22 Annual APPENDIX 1

 Plan Actual

CORE FINANCIAL SYSTEMS

Systems Based Reviews

Asset Management

Bank Reconciliation

Cash Receipting

Council Tax

Creditor Payments 18.00

Debtors 18.00

General Ledger 23.00

Housing Benefits

NDR

Payroll

Treasury Management 12.00

Non-Systems Queries / Work

Asset Management

Bank Reconciliation

Cash Receipting

Council Tax

Creditor Payments

Debtors

General Ledger

Housing Benefits

NDR

Payroll

Treasury Management

Subtotal for Core Systems 71.00 0.00

NON CORE SYSTEMS

Allotments & Refund Deposits

Benefits Overpayments & Rec

Building Control Fees

Car Allowances

Car Leasing / Loans

Cashflow Management

CCTV

Charities

Christmas Lights

Civic Chains, Cups & Inventory

Commercial Rents/Lease/Renew

Complaints Monitoring System

Data Sharing Protocols

b/fwdDebt Recovery Arrangements 13.00

DFGs

Dog Warden

Drivers Policy & Handbook

Electoral Registration / Elections

Energy Conserve & Climate Chg

Equalities

ER/VR

Fees & Charges

Page 37



Flexi Scheme

b/fwdFood Team 12.00

Freedom of Information

Gifts & Hospitality

Health & Safety

Income Collection Arrangements

Insurance Arrangements

Land Charges & Registry VDD

Leaders & Opposition Budgets

Lease Arrangements

Licences Taxi 15.00

LSVT Pension Strain

Markets Debt Collection

Mayoral Allowances/Secretarial

Members Allowances

Member iPads

Members Register of Interests

Memb Svs - Funding Applications

Officers Imprests & Subsistence

P-Card Processes

Pest Control

Planning Delegated Reports

Planning Fees

Procurement Arrangements

Scrutiny Function

Selective Licensing Priv Landlord

Separation of Duties - Post Cuts

Service Recharges

Sickness Monitoring

Spot-On Vehicle Tracking

Street Traders

Stores & Inventories

S016 Agreements

Training Budgets / PDR Process

Subtotal for Non Core Systems 40.00 0.00

ESTABLISHMENTS

Cemeteries & Crematorium

b/fwdCVMU 13.00

Engineers

Environmental Protection

Facilities Team

b/fwdFleet Management 12.00

Homelessness Team

Howarth Art Gallery

Markets

Parks & Open Spaces

Shared Service Contact Centre

Sports Pitches

Travellers Site

Page 38



Waste Collection & Recycling

Subtotal for Establishments 25.00 0.00

COMPUTER AUDIT

Assets 10.00

BACS Direct Debit

Data Security & Storage

Disaster Recovery

Government Connect

Help Desk

Internet / E-Mail

IS / IT Strategy

IT Procurement

Mobile Telephony

b/fwdNetwork Controls 12.00

b/fwdPCI & DSS Security 10.00

Security Policy

Software Maintenance Contracts

System Development

Subtotal for Computer Audit 32.00 0.00

CONTRACT AUDIT

Capital Programme

b/fwdContracts CDM + H&S 15.00

Contract Standing Orders

b/fwdLyndon Playing Fields 10.00

b/fwdOther Contract Issues 10.00

Over £250  Exp. Monitoring

Partnerships

Subtotal for Cont & Partner Audit 35.00 0.00

GRANT FUNDING INITIATIVES

HBC

HMR Loans Recov/Empty Homes

NNDR3 Grant Claim 5.00

Other Funding Streams

Rhyddings Park HLF

b/fwdTHI & THI s106 Funding 12.00

Transitional Housing Funding

Subtotal for Grant Funding 17.00 0.00

FOLLOW UPS

Follow Ups 6.00

Subtotal for Follow Ups 6.00 0.00

AUDIT ADVICE

Benefit Issues

Internet

Coaching

ICO Web Info

Page 39



Ext Audit Governance Questions

Friendly Faces

Missing Person Queries

Drugs & Alcohol Policy Query

Broadway Building / Security

Burnley/Pendle/Hyndburn Teams

Year End Issues

Elections Queries

HR Issues

Audit Support to Other Services

Covid19 Issues

HR Issues

Audit Support to Other Services

Covid19 Issues

QAIP

Reception Redesign

Track & Trace Work

Page 40



Audit Advice 42.00

Subtotal for Audit Advice 42.00 0.00

OTHER AUDIT AREAS

Business Continuity Planning 11.00

Civil Contingencies

Constitution & Regulations

Consultation Arrangements

Corporate Strategy

b/fwdGDPR Compliance Work 12.00

Leisure in Hyndburn Risk to HBC

b/fwdProject Management 13.00

Risk Management

Safeguarding

Unfair Dismissal Claims - Cuts

Subtotal for Other Audit Areas 36.00 0.00

AD HOC WORK & INVESTIGATIONS

Business Restart Team

Business Support Grants 8.00

Discretionary Business Sup Grants 8.00

b/fwdFinancial Controls (HofA) 12.00

Isolation Support Grants 8.00

Lockdown Support Grants 8.00

Other Pandemic Grant Funding 15.00

Pandemic Procurement 15.00

Remote Working Arrangements 15.00

Transferred Assets 15.00

Watchguard Software

b/fwdWrite Off Processes 13.00

Page 41



Contingency 78.00

Subtotal for Investigations 195.00 0.00

TOTAL CORE AUDIT 499.00 0.00

SERVICE IMPROVEMENT

Data Quality

Indicators

LDCAG Benchmarking

TOTAL CPA & SERV IMPROV 0.00 0.00

CONSULTANCY & CORP OBJECTIVES

Annual Governance Statement 1.00

Annual Audit Report 3.00

Anti-Fraud & Corruption 10.00

Audit Committee 4.00

Audit Plan & Planning 14.00

Cabinet

Community Trigger / Anti-Social

Domestic Homicide

External Audit 3.00

FOI Requests

GDPR Issues / Queries 8.00

Members Info Bulletins

Money Laund & Proc of Crime

National Fraud Initiative 7.00

Peer Review of Internal Audit 2.00

PREVENT / Anti-Terror

PSIAS

RIPA

SchoolsAmbassador Scheme

Service Planning

Stage 3 Complaint Investigations

Standards / Scrutiny Committee

Whistleblowing

TOTAL CONSULTANCY 52.00 0.00

TRAINING

Courses of Study & Exams

Page 42



Staff Development & Training 15.00

TOTAL TRAINING 15.00 0.00

NON AUDIT

Appraisal PDR Scheme 2.00

Health & Safety

Job Evaluation 2.00

Local Elections & Count

Mgt Team & CFO Meetings 3.00

Office Meetings 12.00

Regional Audit Groups 3.00

Service Managers Meetings

Stationery & Gen Admin 8.00

Sup'visn/Mgt of Audit 26.00

Timesheets / Clockcards etc. 6.00

Unison 2.00

Other Non-Audit

TOTAL NON AUDIT 64.00 0.00

ABSENCE

Annual Leave 107.00

Statutory Leave 33.00

Sickness 10.00

Special Domestic Leave 3.00

Compassionate Leave

Other Absence

TOTAL ABSENCE 153.00 0.00

TOTAL ANNUAL PLAN 783.00 0.00

Maximum Available Days with 783.00

staff in 2021/22 at 01/04/21

Days not or over allocated 0.00

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

REPORT TO: AUDIT COMMITTEE 

DATE: 08 March 2021 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Joyce Plummer - Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: David Donlan, Head of Accountancy 

TITLE OF REPORT: Statement of Accounts 2019/20 Update 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 The report is to inform the Committee on the production of the Annual Accounts and 

their External Audit and deal with issues arising from this work. 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 The Audit Committee is recommended to: 

 Note the update. 

 Note the progress made to have an audited Statement of Accounts ready for audit 
committee approval. 

 Delegate authority to the chair of the audit committee to approve the accounts on 
completion of the audit subject to them being brought to the audit committee 
meeting following approval. 

 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 To submit and publish the audited accounts for 2019/20 as soon as practically possible 

following the completion of the audit of the accounts. A copy of the draft accounts was 
placed on the Council website on the 19 November 2020. 

 
3.2 Grant Thornton, our external auditors, are making progress on the audit of the 

accounts and are expected to complete the work in March. 
 
3.3 The initial deadline for production of the draft accounts was 31 May 2020 but it was 

subsequently moved back to 31 August 2020 as a result of pressures on Local 
Government in producing the accounts due to the potential impact of Covid-19. The 
deadline for the audit of those accounts was also moved back, to the 30 November 
2020. 

Page 45

Agenda Item 6.



 

 

 
3.4 This report asks the audit committee to note the late completion of the audit due to the 

Council’s failure to comply with its statutory duty to submit the un-audited accounts for 
2019/20 by the date above. There are a number of reasons for this including the 
unforeseen impact of covid-19 on the Council’s working arrangements, the initial 
teething problems encountered with remote working, and issues relating to staff 
resources such as difficulties in filling crucial vacant posts. 

 
3.5 The formal audit findings will be reported at the next audit committee which is currently 

set for the 15 July 2021. 
 
3.6  The period of public inspection of the accounts began on the 23 November and has 

now ended. 
 

3.7 Once confirmation has been received from Grant Thornton that the audit is complete, a 
‘Notice of Conclusion of Audit’ will be published. It will explain that the audit of the 
Council’s accounts has finished and state where the accounts and auditor’s report can 
be inspected. 

 
3.8 In order to publish the audited accounts in advance of the next Audit Committee, it is 

recommended that that chair of the committee is given delegated responsibility to 
approve the accounts on behalf of the committee. The audited accounts will be brought 
to the July meeting for review.  

 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 There are no alternative options. 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 None 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 

As described in the Statement of Accounts. 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require 
the Council to approve and publish its audited 
Statement of Accounts by 30 November 
2020.  

Assessment of risk 
 

None. 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  

None. 

Page 46

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


 

 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 None.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO: Audit Committee 

DATE: 08 March 2021 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Joyce Plummer - Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: David Donlan 

TITLE OF REPORT: Annual Accounts 2020/21 Arrangements 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To update the Audit Committee on the arrangements made to date and the 

implications of the changes required for the Council ahead of the closure of the 
2020/21 accounts.  
 

1.2 To seek approval for the accounting policies to be used in producing the Statement of 
Accounts as set out in Appendix 1. 

 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 Note the report and arrangements that the Council is making in advance of the closure 

of accounts for the year 2020/21. 
 
2.2 Approve the proposed accounting policies to be followed in producing the Statement of 

Accounts as shown in Appendix 1. 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 The Council has a statutory duty to approve the accounts for 2020/21 by the 31 July.  

This year, this may be subject to change. The date for the July Audit Committee has 
been scheduled for the 16 July. Consideration should be given to changing this date 
given the requirement to have sight of the accounts in advance of the meeting. 

 
3.2 To ensure that the Council complies with requirements in relation to the Statement of 

Accounts. 

 

3.3 To explain the actions being taken to minimise the risks to the final accounts process. 
 
3.4 The audit of the 2019/20 accounts is yet to be concluded due to the late production and 

Page 49

Agenda Item 7.



publication of the draft statement of accounts and consequently we are awaiting the audit 
opinion on the accounts. 

 
3.5 The 2020/21 accounts are to be produced under the Code of Practice on Local Authority 

 Accounting in the UK for 2020/21 standards and will require similar detail and analysis. 
 There are a few changes to the disclosures within the accounts that are required in    
2020/21 and the deadline for production of the draft accounts is once again 31 May, but 
as stated above may be subject to change. The accounts have to be certified by 31 July, 
although again, it has been proposed to delay until 30 September to alleviate time 
pressures identified with finance and external audit teams. 

 
3.6 The changes affecting this Council are: 
 

 As in previous years, an exercise to declutter the Statement of Accounts should be 
undertaken again with a view to reducing the size of the Statement. 

 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 introduced the requirement for a Narrative 
Statement. There will be additional corporate performance information included in the 
2020/21 narrative statement. 

 Additional requirements around the justification of using estimation techniques and 
bases. 

 From 1 April 2022, the adoption of IFRS 16 relating to leases requires additional work for 
Local Authorities that are lessees to recognise most leases on their balance sheets as 
right-of-use assets. The Council has begun work to identify such assets and consider the 
accounting treatment. 

 
3.7  Preparation 

 
Training 

 Preparation for the closure of accounts 2020/21 has included both formal and 
informal training for staff in Finance which included examples of how to produce 
the statement of accounts and how to treat the changes mentioned in paragraph 
3.6 above.  

 Staff have attended formal training courses by our auditors’ Grant Thornton and 
have taken an active role in regular discussions among peer groups across 
Lancashire and the North West.  

 
Planning 

 The year-end closure memorandum is to be sent to Management Team, Heads of 
Service and various key officers of the Council, giving details of the year-end 
processes and timetable. In addition, a reminder of key dates will be placed in 
Newsround. 

 Regular discussions with our auditors, Grant Thornton, will take place to ensure 
issues are dealt with swiftly. 
 

Procedures & systems 

 Changes to procedures and systems in order to prepare the Council for the 
requirements of earlier closedown such as the timetable for the closure and the 
year-end memorandum have been made. 

Page 50



 
 
 

3.8  Calculation of Impact  
 

 Updating Accounting Policies  
 
 The accounting policies have been reviewed. There are no significant changes and there 
 is no material financial impact of adopting the changes. Appendix 1 shows the proposed 
 accounting policies to be adopted in closing the accounts for 2020/21.  
 

 
3.9 Risks 

The risks of non-compliance with the requirement to have a “fit for purpose” statement of 
accounts prepared by 31 May 2021 and reported to members with an unqualified audit 
opinion by 31 July 2021 include: 
 

 Failure to have assets revalued by the date shown in the timetable. To mitigate 
this risk, officers have completed the great majority of this work in February 2021. 

 Key staff becoming unavailable during the closure process. Planning of staff 
availability will help mitigate the risk but this risk will be managed should the 
situation arise. This includes staff in other Service Units without whom the 
accounts could not be finalised. 

 Failure to fully identify and incorporate the requirements of the 2020 Code. This is 
considered unlikely given the few changes from the 2019 Code. 
 

 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable 
 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 Management Team 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

None 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

 

Assessment of risk 
 

 

Equality and diversity implications  

Page 51



A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 None  
 

Page 52

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


ACCOUNTING POLICIES Appendix 1 
 
i. General Principles 
 
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Authority’s transactions for the 2020/21 financial year 
and its position at the year-end 31st March 2021. The Council is required to prepare an annual 
Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations (2015), which those Regulations 
require to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices under 
section 21 of the 2003 Act primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in 
the United Kingdom 2020/21 (the Code), supported by the International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS). 
 
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, 
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. 
 
ii. Accruals of Income and Expenditure 
 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or 
received. In particular: 
 

 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Council transfers the significant risks 
and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or 
service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council. 

 Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Council can measure reliably 
the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or 
service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council. 

 Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap 
between the date supplies are received and their consumption; they are carried as 
inventories on the Balance Sheet. 

 Expenses in relation to services received (including services as provided by employees) are 
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are 
made. 

 Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively 
as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest for the relevant financial 
instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract. 

 Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or 
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where 
debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to 
revenue for the income that might not be collected.   

 
iii. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without 
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments that 
mature in no more than three months or less from the date of acquisition and are readily convertible 
to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. 
 
In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are 
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s cash management. 
 
 

Page 53



 
iv. Exceptional Items 
 
When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed separately, 
either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the 
accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of the Council’s financial 
performance. 
 
v. Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors 
 
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a 
material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively i.e. in the current 
and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment. 
 
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the 
change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events 
and conditions on the Authority’s financial position or financial performance. 
 
Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening 
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied. 
 
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening 
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 
 
vi. Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets 
 
Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record 
the cost of holding non-current assets during the year: 
 

 Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service. 

 Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no 
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off. 

 Amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service. 
 
The Council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment 
losses or amortisation. However it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue towards 
the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement. 
 
Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisation are therefore replaced by the 
contribution in the General Fund Balance (the Minimum Revenue Provision) calculated on a prudent 
basis by the Council in accordance with statutory guidance. This is achieved through an adjusting 
transaction between the General Fund Balance and the Capital Adjustment Account in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.  
 
vii. Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates 
 
Billing authorities act as agents, collecting council tax and non-domestic rates (NDR) on behalf of the 
major preceptors (including government for NDR) and, as principals, collecting council tax and NDR 
for themselves. Billing authorities are required by statute to maintain a separate fund (i.e. the 
Collection Fund) for the collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of council tax and 
NDR. Under the legislative framework for the Collection Fund, billing authorities, major preceptors 

Page 54



and central government share proportionately the risks and rewards that the amount of council tax 
and NDR collected could be less or more than predicted. 
 
Accounting for Council Tax and NDR 
 
The council tax and NDR income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
is the authority’s share of accrued income for the year. However, regulations determine the amount 
of council tax and NDR that must be included in the authority’s General Fund. Therefore, the 
difference between the income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
and the amount required by regulation to be credited to the General Fund is taken to the Collection 
Fund Adjustment Account and included as a reconciling item in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. 
 
The Balance Sheet includes the Council’s share of the year end balances in respect of council tax and 
NDR relating to arrears, impairment allowances for doubtful debts, overpayments and prepayments 
and appeals. 
 
viii. Employee Benefits 
 
Benefits Payable During Employment 
 
Short term employee benefits such as wages and salaries, paid annual leave, sick leave and expenses 
are paid on a monthly basis and charged on an accruals basis to the relevant service line of the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES). 
 
Termination Benefits 
 
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to terminate an 
officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary 
redundancy in exchange for those benefits and are charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate 
service or, where applicable, to the Non Distributed Costs line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement at the earlier of when the Council can no longer withdraw the offer of those 
benefits or when the Council recognises costs for a restructuring. 
 
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the 
General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or 
pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In 
the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pension Reserve 
to remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and 
replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such 
amounts payable but unpaid at year-end. 
 
Post Employment Benefits 
 
Employees of the Council are eligible to join the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by 
Lancashire County Council. The scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump 
sums and pensions) earned as employees worked for the Council. 
 
 
 
 

Page 55



 
The Local Government Pension Scheme 
 
The Local Government Pension Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme: 
 

 The liabilities of the Lancashire County Pension Scheme attributable to Hyndburn Borough 
Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit 
method – i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to 
retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality 
rates, employee turnover rates, etc., and projected earnings for current employees. 

 Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of xxx% (2.4% 
31st March 2020) based on the indicative rate of return on high quality (AA rated) corporate 
bonds. 

 The assets of the Lancashire County Council Pension Fund attributable to Hyndburn Borough 
Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value: 

o Quoted securities – current bid price 
o Unquoted securities – professional estimate 
o Utilised securities – current bid price 
o Property – market value 

 

 The change in the Net Pensions Liability is analysed into the following components: 
Service cost comprising: 

 
o Current Service Cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned 

this year – allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to 
the services for which the employee worked. 

o Past Service Cost – the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions 
whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – debited to the 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed Costs. 

o Net Interest on The Net Defined Benefit Liability (Asset) i.e. net interest expense for 
the Council – the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset) 
that arises from the passage of time charged to the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement – that is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the 
defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit 
liability (asset) at the beginning of the period – taking into account any changes in 
the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contribution 
and benefit payments. 
 

Remeasurements comprising: 
 

o The Return on Plan Assets – excluding amounts included in net interest on the net 
defined benefit liability (asset) – charged to the Pensions Reserve as other 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

o Actuarial Gains and Losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because 
events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or 
because the actuaries have updated their assumptions – charged to the Pension 
Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

 
Footnote: the discount rate to be used is not known until after the 31st March 2021 

Page 56



 
Contributions paid to the Lancashire County Pension Fund – cash paid as employer’s 
contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an 
expense. 

 
In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to be 
charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the 
year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in 
Reserves Statement, this means there are transfers to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the 
notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to 
the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at year end. The 
negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the 
General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather 
than as benefits are earned by employees.  
  
Discretionary Benefits 
 
The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the 
event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of 
staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same 
policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme. 
 
ix. Events After The Reporting Period 
 
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur 
between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised 
for issue. Two types of event can be identified: 
 

 Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period – 
the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events. 

 Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the Statement 
of Accounts are not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would 
have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their 
estimated financial effect. 

 
Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of 
Accounts. 
 
x. Financial Instruments 
 
Financial Liabilities 
 
Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are 
carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are 
based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the 
instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 
payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised. 
 

Page 57



For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in the 
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest charged to 
the CIES is the amount payable for the year according to the loan agreement. 
 
Financial Assets 
 
Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that reflects the 
business model for holding the financial assets and their Cashflow characteristics there are three 
main classes of financial assets measured at: 
 

 Amortised cost 

 Fair value through profit and loss (FVPL), and 

 Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). 
  

The Council’s business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows. Financial 
assets are therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those whose contractual payments are 
not solely payment of principal and interest (i.e. where the cash flows do not take the form of a 
basic debt instrument). 
 
Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost 
 
These are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently 
measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Loans and receivables are recognised in the Balance Sheet when the Council 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at 
fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing 
and Investment Income and Expenditure (FIIE) line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement (CIES) for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by 
the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the loans the Council has made, this 
means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus 
accrued interest) and interest credited to the CIES is the amount receivable for the year in the loan 
agreement. 
 
However, the Council has made loans to an organisation at less than market rates (soft loans). When 
soft loans are made, a loss is recorded in the CIES (debited to the appropriate service) for the 
present value of the interest that will be foregone over the life of the instrument, resulting in a lower 
amortised cost than the outstanding principal.  
 
Interest is credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES at a 
marginally higher effective rate of interest than the rate receivable from the voluntary organisation, 
with the difference serving to increase the amortised cost of the loan in the Balance Sheet. Statutory 
provisions require that the impact of soft loans on the General Fund Balance is the interest 
receivable for the financial year – the reconciliation of amounts debited and credited to the CIES to 
the net gain required against the General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the 
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
Any gains or losses that arise on the Derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to the FIIE in 
the CIES. 
 
 

Page 58



 
 
 
Expected Credit Loss Model 
 
The Council recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at amortised cost (or 
where equivalent FVOCI), either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss model also 
applies to lease receivables and contract assets. Only lifetime losses are recognised for trade 
receivables (debtors) held by the Council.   
 
Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectations that the future cash flows might not 
take place because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a crucial part in 
assessing losses. Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument was initially recognised, 
losses are assessed on a lifetime basis. Where risk has not increased significantly or remains low, 
losses are assessed on the basis of 12-month losses. 
 
Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss 
 
Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured 
and carried at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are recognised as they arrive in the Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of Services. 
 
The fair value measurement of the financial assets are based on the following techniques: 
 
a) Instruments with quoted market prices – the market price  
b) Other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted cash flow analysis.  
 
The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following three 
levels:  

 Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that 
the authority can access at the measurement date.  

 Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.  

 Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.  
 
The Council uses the DVS Valuation Office Agency, Manchester to provide a valuation of its property 
assets and liabilities in line with the highest and best use definition within the accounting standard; 
and Link Asset Services to value its investments and borrowings. The highest and best use of the 
asset being valued is considered from the perspective of a market participant.  
 
The Council’s surplus assets are judged to be Level 2. 

 
 
xi. Government Grants and Contributions 
 
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party 
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable 
assurance that: 
 

Page 59



 The Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and 

 The grants or contributions will be received. 
 
Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. 
Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential 
embodied in the asset in the form of the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the 
recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the 
transferor. 
 
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are 
carried in the balance sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is 
credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and 
Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ringfenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they 
are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the 
grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied 
Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the 
Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have 
been applied to fund capital expenditure. 
 
 
xii. Heritage Assets 
 
Tangible Heritage Assets (described in this summary of significant accounting policies as heritage 
assets) 
 
The Council’s heritage assets are held in the Haworth Art Gallery. The Gallery has four collections of 
heritage assets which are held in support of the primary objective of the museum i.e. maximise the 
recognition, appreciation and use of Haworth Art Gallery and its unique Tiffany Glass collection as a 
historic and contemporary art, education, leisure and tourism asset of local, regional and national 
importance. 
 
Heritage assets are recognised and measured (including the treatment of revaluation gains and 
losses) in accordance with the Council’s accounting policies on property, plant and equipment. 
However some of the measurement rules are relaxed in relation to heritage assets as detailed 
below.  
 
The Tiffany Glass Collection 
 
The Tiffany Glass collection includes handmade blown glass vases, glass tiles, jewels and mosaics; as 
well as pottery, metalwork and enamel items. 
 
The items are reported in the Balance Sheet at insurance valuation which is based on market values. 
The insurance valuations are updated periodically. 
 
The Art Collection 
 

Page 60



The art collection includes paintings (both oil and watercolour) as well as etchings, book illustrations 
and chromolithographs. It is reported in the Balance Sheet at market value. 
 
 
 
Numismatics Collection 
 
The collection comprises coins, medals and tokens. The medals show portraits of famous people 
through history, while the trade tokens have a strong local connection. 
 
The items are reported in the Balance Sheet at insurance valuation which is based on market values. 
The insurance valuations are updated periodically. 
 
Community Collection 
 
The items are reported in the Balance Sheet at insurance valuation which is based on market values. 
The insurance valuations are updated periodically. 
 
The date of the latest valuation of Heritage Assets undertaken by Eric Knowles Antiquarian Services 
is August 2016. 
 
Assets within all four collections are deemed to have indeterminate lives and, in the case of the glass 
and art collections, a high residual value; hence the Council does not consider it appropriate to 
charge depreciation. 
 
All four collections are relatively static and acquisitions and donations are rare. The Gallery is 
accredited by the Arts Council of Great Britain which means it has a statement of purpose, an 
acquisition and disposals policy, a guide to the documentation relating to the collections and a plan 
for the collections’ care and conservation. 
 
Civic Regalia 
 
The Council also has a collection of civic regalia which is held at the Town Hall. It was last valued for 
insurance purposes by Precious Metals in August 2016. 
 
xiii. Intangible Assets 
 
Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by the 
Council e.g. software licences is capitalised when it is expected that the future economic benefits or 
service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the Council. 
 
Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily 
intended to promote or advertise the Council’s goods and services. 
Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of an 
asset can be determined by reference to an active market. In practice, no intangible asset held by 
the Council meets this criterion, and they are therefore carried at amortised cost. 
 
The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant service 
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 

Page 61



Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, 
amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an impact 
on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund 
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and 
(for any sales proceeds greater than £10,000) to the Capital Receipts Revenue Account. 
 
 
 
xiv. Interests in Companies and Other Entities 
 
The Council has material interests in other entities that have the nature of associates; Hyndburn BC 
therefore prepares group accounts. In the authority’s own single entity accounts, the interests in the 
entities are recorded as financial assets at cost, less any provision for losses. 
 
xv. Inventories 
 
Inventories are held in the Balance Sheet at purchase price. The cost of inventories is assigned using 
the First In, First Out costing formula. 
 
xvi. Investment Property 
 
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and / or for capital appreciation. 
The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or 
production of goods or is held for sale. 
 
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, being the price 
that would be received to sell such an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at 
the measurement date. As a non-financial asset, investment properties are measured at highest and 
best use.  Properties are not depreciated but revalued annually according to market conditions at 
year end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is 
applied to gains and losses on disposal. 
 
Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment 
Income line and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal 
gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General 
Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale 
proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve. 
 
xvii. Leases 
 
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks 
and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the 
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 
 
Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered 
separately for classification. 
 
The Council as Lessee 
 

Page 62



Finance Leases 
 
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are recognised on the Balance Sheet at the 
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception. The asset recognised 
is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. Contingent rents are charged as 
expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. 
 
 
Lease payments are apportioned between: 
 
A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment – applied to write 
down the lease liability, and 
 
A finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement). 
 
Property, plant and equipment recognised under finance leases are accounted for using the policies 
applied generally to such assets. 
 
The Council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment 
losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue funds 
towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements. Depreciation 
and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted by a revenue contribution in the 
General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two. 
 
Operating Leases 
 
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as an expense of the services benefitting from the use of the leased property, plant or 
equipment.  
 
The Council as Lessor 
 
Finance Leases  
Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the 
relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of the lease, 
the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or 
Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A gain, representing the 
Council’s net investment in the lease, is credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying 
value of the asset at the time of disposal), matched by a lease (long-term debtor) asset in the 
Balance Sheet.  
 
Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:  
 

 A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property – applied to write down the lease 
debtor (together with any premiums received), and  

 Finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).  

Page 63



 
The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is not 
permitted by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and is required to be treated as a capital 
receipt. Where a premium has been received, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the 
Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the amount due in relation 
to the lease asset is to be settled by the payment of rentals in future financial years, this is posted 
out of the General Fund Balance to the Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement. When the future rentals are received, the element for the capital receipt for 
the disposal of the asset is used to write down the lease debtor. At this point, the deferred capital 
receipts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.  
 
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current 
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are therefore 
appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement. 
 
Operating Leases  
 
Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the 
asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating Expenditure 
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made on a straight-line 
basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a 
premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and 
arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and charged as an 
expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. 
 
xviii. Overheads and Support Services 
 
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to service segments in accordance with the 
Council’s arrangements for accountability and financial performance. 
 
 
xix. Property, Plant and Equipment 
 
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods and 
services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes  and that are expected to be used during 
more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment. 
 
Recognition 
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is 
capitalised on accruals basis, provided it is probable that the future economic benefits or service 
potential associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. 
 
Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver future economic 
benefits or service potential (e.g. repairs and maintenance) is charged to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement as it is incurred. 
 
Measurement 

Page 64



Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising the purchase price and any costs attributable to 
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the 
manner intended by the management. 
 

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases: 
 

 Infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction – depreciated historical cost 

 Surplus Assets – the current value measurement base is fair value, estimated at highest and 
best use from a market participant’s perspective 

 All other assets – the current value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the 
asset in its existing use (existing use value – EUV) 

 
Where there is no market based evidence of current value because of the specialist nature of an 
asset, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of current value. 
 
Where non-property assets that have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated 
historical cost basis is used as a proxy for current value. 
 
Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure 
their carrying amount is not materially different from their current value at the year end, but as a 
minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve 
to recognise unrealised gains. 
 
Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by: 
 

 Where there is a balance for gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the 
accumulated gains) 

 Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement 

 
The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since April 1st 2007 only, the date of 
its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital 
Adjustment Account. 
 
Impairment 
Assets are assessed at year end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. 
Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable 
amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an 
impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. 
 
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by: 
 

 Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the 
carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the 
accumulated gains) 

 Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 

Page 65



Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service 
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, 
adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised. 
 
Depreciation 
Depreciation is provided for on all property, plant and equipment assets by the systematic allocation 
of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a 
determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community Assets) and assets that are 
not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction). 
The Council operates a straight line method for depreciation over the useful economic life of the 
asset as follows: 

Asset Period (Years) 

Operational Buildings 30* 

Non-Operational Buildings 30* 

Community Assets 5 - 50 

Infrastructure 10 

Vehicles & Plant 2-14 

Surplus Assets –Housing Market Renewal Properties 15 

 
*As part of the Council’s five year rolling revaluation programme, a revised estimated useful life of 
the asset (if applicable) may be applied, up to a maximum of 60 years. 
Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately. 
 
Component Accounting 
Componentisation applies where an asset comprises two or more major components with 
substantially different useful economic lives. For the purpose of depreciation, each component is 
accounted for separately and depreciated over the course of its respective life. 
 
The policy applied at Hyndburn Borough Council has a de minimus level of £500,000 asset value for 
the building element and a maximum number of components of five.  
  
Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale 
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally 
through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held 
for Sale. 
 
Assets Held for Sale are assets where the: 
 

 Asset is immediately available for sale 

 Sale is highly probable 

 Asset is actively marketed 

 Sale is expected to be completed within twelve months 
 

The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this 
amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs 
to sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous 
losses recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on 
Assets Held for Sale. 
 

Page 66



If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified back 
to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as 
held for sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been 
recognised had they not been classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at that date 
of the decision not to sell. 
 
Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale. 
 
 
 
Disposals 
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance 
Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other 
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the 
gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals, if any, are credited to the same line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. 
netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains 
accumulated on the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment 
Account. 
 
Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. A 
proportion of receipts relating to housing disposals (75% for dwellings, 50% for land and other 
assets, net of statutory deductions and allowances) is payable to the Government. The balance of 
receipts is required to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for 
new capital investment or set aside to reduce the Council’s capital financing requirement. Receipts 
are appropriated to the Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
The written off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed assets is fully 
provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the 
Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. 
 
xx. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
 
Provisions 
Provisions are made when an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or constructive 
obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential 
and a reliable estimation can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
 
Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council becomes aware of the obligation, and are 
measured at the best estimate at the Balance Sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the 
obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties. 
 
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet. 
Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year – where it becomes less than 
probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than 
anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service. 
 

Page 67



Where some or all of the payment required to settle the provision is expected to be recovered from 
another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), it is only recognised as income for the relevant service 
if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Council settles the obligation. 
 
Contingent Liabilities 
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible 
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain 
future events not wholly within the Council’s control. Contingent liabilities can also arise in 
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not sufficiently certain 
that the event will take place or the obligation cannot be measured reliably. 
 
 
 
Contingent Asset 
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible asset but 
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events 
not wholly within the control of the Council. 
 
Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but are disclosed in a note 
to the accounts. 
 
 
xxi. Reserves 
 
The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover 
contingencies. Reserves are created by transferring amounts out of the General Fund Balance in the 
Movements in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is 
charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then 
transferred back into the General Fund Balance so that there is no net charge against council tax for 
the expenditure. 
 
Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial 
instruments, local taxation, retirement and employee benefits. These do not represent usable 
resources for the Council, and include the capital adjustment account, revaluation reserve and the 
pensions reserve. 
 
xxii. Revenue Expenditure Funded From Capital Under Statute 
 
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but does 
not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the relevant 
service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. 
 
Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital 
resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General 
Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged so that 
there is no impact on the level of council tax. 
 
xxiii. VAT 
 

Page 68



VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her 
Majesty’s Revenue and Customs. Vat receivable is excluded from income. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
xxiv. Fair Value Measurement 
 

The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and investment 
properties and some of its financial instruments such as equity shareholdings at fair value at each 
reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair 
value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place 
either:  

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or  

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 
liability.  

The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in 
their economic best interest.  

When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the authority takes into account a market 
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by 
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.  

The Council uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data is available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use 
of unobservable inputs.  

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured 
or disclosed in the Council’s financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, as 
follows:  
 
Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 

Council can access at the measurement date 

 
Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly 

  

Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.  
 

 

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2. Minutes of the Last Meeting
	3. Audit Plan 2020/21 Progress Report
	4. Follow-Ups Progress Report
	5. Audit Plan 2021/22
	Plan Cover & Preface 2021-22
	Audit Areas Planned for 2021-22

	6. Statement of Accounts 2019/20 Update
	7. Annual Accounts 2020/21 Arrangements
	Accounting Policies Appendix 1 to March Meeting


